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Forbes, Michael J SFC USARMY usso,oM USASO( (USA) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Signed By: 

SFCForbes: 

Brunson, Tavi N COL USARMY USSOCOM usAsoc (USA) 
Thursday, December 1, 2022 9:30 PM 
Forbes, Michael J SFC USARMY USSOCOM USASOC (USA) 
Vargas, Sandrea A CSM USSOCOM USASOC (USA) 
RE: long Thank you; apology, goals and some personal bac~ground 
tavi.n.brunspn.rnil@mail.mil 

Thank 1/0U for__yo_ur thorough and bomprehensiv'.e feedback. 

L wli[rispect Y,oui:i:eqi:iest:arid~excuse yoi.tir.orrijhis te-arri";6uflding event. Whfle treg-reiy~u iioibeing the°i:~, 1 
am gfacU6afW:e stlTI}1av.e ba"e.ieniodeadei:::atihe_headquactei:s~toJianct1e_ai:iy_emer.geade~. -

COL Tavi Brunson 
CDR/528S8 
BB: 910"882"3389 
Off: 910-432-4649 

Sent with Black Berry Work 
(www.blackberry.com) 

From: Forbes; Michael JSFC USARMV USSOCOM USASOC (USA) <michael.j.forbes.mrl@socom.mil> 
Date:Thursday, Dec 01, 2022 at 18:15 
To: Brunson, TavlN COL USARMY USSOCOM USASOC (USA) <tavi.n.brunson.mil@socom.mil> 
Cc:Vargas, Sandrea A CSM USSOCOM USASOC (USA) <sandrea.cruz@socom.mil> • 
Subject: long Thankyo1.J, apology, goals and some personal background 

Sir: 

w.e bniifia-cLone .. office-_calCwiien Lwas Acffrig_oic,:soJ_ tho:Ugbt_you deser.v.ett a.little~rniire ~:f niy]1istorv=atfer 
1/_esterdafs inte_r:actions. 

BLUF: 2 THANK VOUs, ah APOLOGY and GOALS; WARNING: Passive voice writing and background information is 
prevalent below. I recommend a cup of coffee before you continue. 

Thank you for your time during our impromptu meeting that CSM Vargas summoned me immediately after MAJ Racaza­
leftyour offices. &'o.ucunderstanding __ otmy._concerns regarding being forced_to_engag·e with.a.third:party_corporation 
ancl·agree_to_tbeir:~ter:ms_o.f_Seryice_and er:iy_acy_eolicy~_re:_w.hat_co_uld be_perceived as.a_behav.ior:al health.assessment, 
ls appi:edated.:iair demcin-str.ate'd yciur.Jincferstancffng i:iy~ver.balfya ii owing me-to~noipa iifcfpate in_the_data;gatheiin1g 
eileiitili the: To;pei:son sliaringJ:>_fihe]iJs1g'lits_co:atained rn:the jier:s_QnaTized pr:od'ii-ced i:e"poris~from, Qr ... Elias-=-eor:ter:'s 
conceived,_SDL2.0.b:y_co:restrengths (ah_o_utside Cor:poration). 

My background-a little about me.:. Unlike CSM Vargas inferred, Lrar.el:y_make un~resear:ched ciecisions.or_assumptioris 
without teal data. A teri:iary.Jook.at.corestrength~s website totaling 6.hours has.been.conducted by.me (on.my~own time 
o.vedtie.past~two hfghts;j~hours p:er=1iighfsince_y.o:ur:e'maii). [have concluded that.the .. empirical daia~gather.ed iiho.ut.a 
user'.s_pr:eferences in_var:ious behavJor:al Weightings in.SDL2.0Js,a_P..er:ception~Base·d model a-nd_can_easfl:y_be.fakecl by.a 
user: to.create_a_ resultthat the_user_believes.the,sponsoring ~gent (in_ this_case.ournnit)_wou Id pref et. ln.shor:t,~its .often 
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unreffa6le;_:espedafiy __ when ilie __ ia:eotitle-s_ofrfie:user:s is:public..to_the:sponsodngagent:_:f.hhi_is_ev-ident by-the 
c·o:reiirength-,s-example i:eport_d-isplayid on thefr~website.-with:everyJndividual users name tin i;per~-the.example. 

Perception-Based models have tbe same problems any subjective profession that requires oaths or creeds as 
certification. To wit, it is only the ethical nature of th!!! individual Doctor or Attorney that can determine if the consumer 
of their services is getting reasonably authentic advise or guidance; a moral compass must be working for the consumer. 
In contrast, a biased or, worse yet, ignorant, malicious or criminal actors In a position-of-trust can have devastating 
effects on consumers lives and/or careers. Moreover, perceptions are individually based and typically affected by one's 
frame-of-reference. For instance, MAJ Racaza~stharacterization oTmy requesi"io.u-nde-rstan'd the-scope'and regulatory 
b_asis __ ot the mapdafor:y natur:e oitbe -stii."i.o_wasJnaccui:ate. Net, she __ folfowed me up .the-_stai_rs .io~report~to youihail 
wis angn,~:s.6:e~roispen:eiy:ed m:v.:aem:ea-r1or and~peak1nichaiacterlstks::w"t-iich typica-liyJnclude_fasitaf.k!ng,~cc>mp-l~x 
_se_ntences, co_ofident_conv_ersations_with_quick_trarisitions. In fact, without taking the SDI 2.0 but being.somewhat self­
aware, I am likely a Red-Green on the SDI Triangle (if that helps the group). I am all about performance and procedure 
with a judicious and competing nature. That is why I have expended so much energy in attempting to hc!ve our unit lean­
forward with the PSAP program because we are a tip-of-the~spear SOF Support Element and we should be performing at 
a professional level when it comes to non-discretionary regulatory requirements that is better than most units in our 
Army. Simply, l want our S2 to be one of the best when PSAP goes live in PHASE 1; not one of the many units that will 
have repeating failed quarterly 'report cards' because they will likely need to reinvigorate their Clearance Suitability 
Programs and the known published procedures therein. We ~re:a1Ldiffereni a·nd i.except_ever.yone's ldfosyncra-sie's 
wlthoutfudgmentunfessJh-ey.a"ffecimy Hvelihoocfor"h"eaiih; Ltia(ie-ia-tti.ere'd ~n-o.ugh em"iifrTcal data fn~myJife" to 
conclui:fe:that.people.sometirhes 8ori~i.practice~what fh-ey.preach and accept mine. Lam 54_years_olcLandjtiough Lam 
not_clon~-learning:ifiei:e_a-re::cer:tain."asp:ects_iifrriy lfte:and comrri"unicatidn that_a-re~ffke-iy~bakec.t inllie.~cake;~liy_no.~. 

-------. '---------- --·-•--·------·--· ---1 ,-------·------------.----- - -- .-- -,--- •• --·---- ----- -------------· -·--·- ----------'----
Having developed a_mLilti~platform (consisting.oLValue: and Logic~based) :Sur:v.eyJn.my_Graduate wor:k atthe_University 
cif P.ittsliurgh,_when [was taskec:Lto.su-pport Adtranz (a:1ight;r:afLafrport tr.am nfanufactur:er) JrL199ECw.e ;,er:e.taskecfto 
~esign icusfom:made _survey_:o_fi:tiefr :massrye ~ngin-eei:ing:sfaff a-t- theirXo-rpor.ate He-adciua r:te-rs locaiion-::rheiwanted 
my _team to.determine why_their _employmentturnov_er rate was high. We purposefully considered not to employ a 
Behavioral-Based criteria model as .we determined the wea~ness of perception-oriented data. We chose more intrinsic: 
Value,,.Based criteria questions dealing with compensation, benefits, workplace environment, etc., coupled with a second 
survey that used Dr. Thomas L. Saaty's Analytic Hierarchy Process; a decision-making framework used for large.,.scale, 
multiparty, multi'•criteria decision analysis. AHP uses Pairwise Comparison matrices to derive the priorities for a set 
number of alternatives. This method of estimating criteria weights take the comprehensive Values-Based results and 
applies the engineering stafrs weighted preference~ to them. itpiod.uced ccimpr:eher:1sbi.e pr:io_ritlied~r.esults. i3_ut_h-ow 
d1d_we_-gef_compr.e"fi:ens1ve i:esults-_we-~ould rely_o.ri'?."We prese'r:v.ed tfre_ano.nymfry cifii:ie paiilcipants~_wfiich p"ro:d.u_ce'.d an 
lncredibie 90% pa"i:ticipaffon rate:_'rhfs~-success~was_due-.tci,~1foui.pi:om7se fo~ttiid1igfiiieducated siatfitiatitie-raw:aata 
wouid not_fie_-released to_the.management and li)JuTly_ expia"riied the.method of the_sur:v:ey. i,Xcireover,tor.porate 
Management exp-ressed ffieii:.appreclation ri:fr~fhe 6readth and de-pth tiffhis:two tiered survey, because it significantly 
enhanced the data's worth to them more than any prior attempted survey had (the university sent a team of grad_uate 
students to annually for years prior and after our visit). Our unique approc1ch was something they could rely on and base 
corporate Human Respurces policy decisions on. Jhey likedJtso_much that upon leaving_theJocation,_(the_day __ oHhe 
out~bdet);_i,l.few.ofth~ Huma'n Resoui:c'e executivesJollo.wed meio_my_car.:arid reqi:ieste'd thaf1:givelhern the.raW::u-ser 
s ur_veys (iha.t 1 _stupid I y.comm er.iied iie re i n_myirun k _du ring The_ b-i:lef). G:efused, titi ng_the~p roniise_.tha~ifiiy.:a nd~ttie 
resi.cffiheirJeadeiihip.tearn a-gi:eed.to .. We had~garneied writte·n sigiiatures.that.ttie~particirianfundersfodd thaftt:iefr 
answ:~frs~or~h,incfi,riting:would 'noftie_piovictecf.to_a"nyon·e irijiie_c:ompany. My Profess-a}, ~sk-ed~focthe~ata_onihe_last 
day_~cifdiss~and~waigiven_ttie·-same tes-pon-se by=me._Th is.wasihe=on Ty_c:grade L rece-ived rr:i -iny~Gr.ad"iiaie work.that 
culminate'd in_a_3A7_GPA (on a_4'..0_scale). Lam stilLpro_u'a ofmy_decision_to~this_day,_because-we gave.them quality 
i-e'sultsihaflar __ excee-ded their expecfations_inifwe kept"aur-proni ises fo}he-staff. 

,_-consid~r:e!d the-s·uh}ective.grade f.was_-given -fu"i:that projett, retalia:tionJi:Uitiad iio:pi-o.af;Jife-r:niives hn~ar:ic[ff1Ts_-was 
inco,isequential to~-nie~ In my.Arm·y career_ 1:have been i-_etaliate-d agafnst".focstarting·a-.Qeroga_to_i:y fiicldenfliepo_d:fog 
P-rogra-rn at a:BN-that:was fn:a:--ai:iE fn.JNhlch no_e)errient:ati:he_eiitl"re sbt_6-ad fop_o_i:t"e"d oriesiss~R fD_er:Ogafor:v R~pi:frt) 
in~-ye-i1r.s.i-tiaes:tight; .. Sir;~yearsl litook:tw.o:y.eiri:.i"nd anJG-_compia-int,alongi:essioi:ial c.cirori.fafoiana~1rii2~-=-i3_sJoi_me 
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to_.exposethis_r:etaliation_to_th.e_appropr:iate lev.eLto_have ita.ll~unwo.und :With._the_dicking_of_a_printbutton_which 
prodl!ced a singular_menio from a:MG. Lhav.e.exp.erienced such unpr_o.fessional behavio.r.:in_my._career,_yet Lremain 
iiasIHv.e 1fr1a c·ar:rv na:gri1dges.:tliatsa"ia, Cnave liee'n tliere, aon'e :that, arid rafo_fne fook1e1.' 

i am _soiryjh-aT l~am uncomfortable wffh thisiral"i1Tng:i1nd respectfufiy-i11sh~fo not-partk:ipat~. The logic based brief lab 
that you provided to your staff last year was excellentand I would jump at the chance to participate in any of their 
advanced training. 

I have proactive goals for your BOE 52 PSP. tdon'.t want to.!~d1e. on [any]_hill/1 in fact, I want to take this opportunity to 
let you know how I admire your leadershO:> style and your dedication to all of us. I have always been proud to serve this 
unit and, more importantly; to serve you and CSM V. I would do so again in a heartbeat;.a unit is its people and the two 
of you have consistently stuck your reputations oil the line on behalf of all of us. It is because of that I have always given 
you and your staff, leaders and ·SMs my personal best. Lhave_always pr:oyided guidance in.an.effort.to_do . .the_righUhing 
t,i-ser:v.e~.ou and_oiir..unit;-.e~en When itJ1a-sJieen resisted by~ciiiiers. Having the·opportunity to serve you at a BOE S2 
echelon has provided ample opportunity to make myself and our unit better every day. Your tenets are paramount to an 
individual's success and I have come to practice them. It is my hope that I will continue to be able to serve you forthe 
remainder of my tenure of my current assignment. 

My top 3 goals prior to my PCSilig in SEP23 are as follows: 

1) Thorough (Step .. by-Step) Continuity Flow Charts for every conceivable multistep process in the Personnel 
Security Program (PSP). We have circa 5.o+ Task Flowcharts in various stages of development, which will be 
tested and pot in a hard copy "Go-Book" for S2 at all echelons and replicated on Digits for USASOC to distribute 
to every CSU BDE S2 for distribution .. 

2) • BOE Reportable Activity (formerly Derogatory Incident) Reporting Policy rewrite, which we agreed to use lSFC 
S2s policy, which we agreed needs more detail. Our work will become SOP at their level, which will impact 11 
CSUs and become the lSFC standard for Reportable Activities reporting, going forward. 

3) Vibrant Reportable Activity Command Team education (with outside SMEs) in preparation for Personnel Security 
Accountability Program transition from Pilot Phase to Phase 1-,-Phase 3 (full .implementation). 

Thanks again for your time. If you happened to make it through this proactive explanation, I hope you found it 
enlightening and worth it. I.pride myselfJn making ho_r:ash._decisions, only principled gambles with as much data as I can 
garner in the shortest amount of time: sometime based on hunches. I am intel after all. 

Always Out Front, Support to the Utmost, 

Michael J. Forbes 
528th Sustainment Brigade (SO) (A), 
S2, NCOIC 
SMO: W0GKAA6 
~ NIPR: (910) 908-8788 
m BB} (910) 929-7078 
m Staff Office: (910) 908-8787 
m SIPR: 239-3425 · 
NIPR:-michael.i.forbes.mil@socom,mil 
SIPR: michael.j.forbes.mil@socom.smil.mil 

J 
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. . 

"In peace there's nothing so becomes a man As modest stillness and humility: But when the blast ohvar blows in our 
ears., Then imitat,E! ·the action of the tiger; Stiffen the sinews, summon up th~ blood, Disguise fair nature with hard-favou~d 

• • rage; Then lend the·eye a·terrible aspect;" - William Shakespe;!are 

:Recommended reading from LTC.Harhman's farewell email to 528th staff: 
https://fromthegreennotebook.toin/2019/08/23/the:-map-:on-the:..wall/ 
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